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V. 

PAVEL SEMENOVICH FLIDER and 
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INDICTMENT 

Counts One - Fifteen: 18 U.S.C. §§ 554(a) and 2- Smuggling of 
Goods; Count Sixteen: 18 U.S.C. § 1956(h)- Conspiracy to Commit 
International Money Laundering; Counts Seventeen - Twenty-Six: 18 
U.S.C. § 1956(a)(2)(A) - Money Laundering; Forefeiture Allegation: 
13 U.S.C § 305(a)(3)- Failure to File Export Information Forfeiture; 
18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(C)- Smuggling Forfeiture; 18 U.S.C. § 982(a) 

(1) - Money Laundering Forfeiture; and 28 U.S.C. § 2461 (c) 
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Filed in open court this ...:5-t1 day of 

IZluclf: t<S' 
MARiA-ELENA JAMES ~c J. ROSE MAHER 
UNITF.DSTATESMAGISTRATE,P~ H-V.. :. 

Nn RAIi "ooc~TWARFWtlJs_~---=-~-- Yi 

\ 



I 

A6257 (Re~. 6178) [ ___ DE=F.:..::;E~NN;.c_DA._N_T_I_N_FO--R-M_A_T_IO_N_R-ELA_T_IV_E_T_O_A __ CR_I_M_IN_A_L_A_C_T __ IO_N ___ IN-U-.S-. D-1-S-TR_I_CT_C_O_UR-T:] 

BY: D COMPLAINT D INFORMATION Ill INDICTMENT 

---- OFFENSE CHARGED 
D SUPERSEDING 

18 U.S.C. § 554(a)- Smuggling of Goods; D Petty 
18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(2)(A)-Money Laundering D Minor 

D Misde-
meanor 

Ii) Felony 

· PENALTY: 

l 

18 U.S.C. § 554: $250,000 fine; $100 special assessment; 
forfeiture of involved property and proceeds. 
(cont'd) 

.. --· . -·-- ··---- -·------------' r·---·-·--·- PROCEEDING 
i Name of Complaintant Agency, or Person (&Title, if any) 
! Department of CommctCC, Bureau of Industry and Security 

Special Agent Richard J. Fitzpatrick Ill 

D person is awaiting trial in another Federal or State 
Court, give name of court 

this person/proceeding is transferred from another D district per (circle one} FRCrP 20, 21 or 40. Show 
District 

this is a reprosecution of 

SHOW D charges previously dismissed 
which were dismissed on 
motion of: D U.S. Att'y D Defense 
this prosecution relates to a D pending case involving this same 
defendant 

} DOCKETNO. 

D 
prior proceedings or appearance(s) 
before U.S. Magistrate regarding '~ 

1 this defendant were recorded unde,.-, 

MAGISTRATE 
CASE NO. 

i___ ______________ , ----=---=--=--=----_-_-_-_-:-_....,. 
Name and Office of Person 
Furnishing Information on MELINDA L HAAG 

THIS FORM -·-----· _____ _ 
Ill U.S. Att'y D Other U.S. Agency 

Name of Asst. U.S. Att'y 
(If assigned) Philip J. Kearney ____ ..;.__-_____ _ 

,- Name of District Court, and/or Judge/Magistrate Location 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORN 

1 DEFENDANT. U.S. 

t TRIDENT INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION, LLC 

DISTRICT COURT NUMBER 

CR 15 0154 
IS NOT IN CUST~~:NDANT ___ ·-_· .-,¥-~c•· : .. ·-·!r-··-__ ·-~---_J 

r7I Has not been arrested, pending outcome this proceeding. 
1) If not detained give date any prior summon-. 

was served on above charges ., . -----1 
2) 0 Isa Fugitive F' JI._ 
3) D Is on Bail or Release from (show District) £ D 

IS IN CUSTODY 

4) D On this charge 

5) D On another conviction 
S) D Awamng ma1 on 01ner 

rh:un,:.c: 

HAR -5 2015 
lflCHA,to W.-----·-

NOR~I~~ AfltR'stl~1:~L~G 
ICT OF CAUFOJNi 

} D Fed'I D State 

If answer to (6) Is "Yes", show name of Institution 

--------··-··· .. --··--··-·-
Has detainer D Yes } 
been filed? O No 

lf"Yes" 
give date 
filed 

DATEOF t 
ARREST 

Month/DayN ear 

Or ... if Arresting Agency & Warrant were not 

DATE TRANSFERRED ._ 
TO U.S. CUSTODY a, 

Month/Day Near 

0 This report amends AO 257 previously submitted 

--··· · --- ·-- .. ·--·--- · ---ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENTS ------------

I 

PROCESS: 
D SUMMONS Ill NO PROCESS* 

If Summons, complete following: 
D Arraignment D Initial Appearance 
Defendant Address: 

0 WARRANT Bail Amount: 

*Where defendant previously apprehended on complaint, no new summons 
or warrant needed, since Magistrate has scheduled arraignment 

Date/Time: --------------
8 e fore Judge: 

[ ________ c_om-~~:~_: :_-=._-_-_-_-.-_------------------------------- ·----



18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(2)(A): $500,000 fine or twice the value of the property used in the 
transaction, whichever is greater; $100 special assessment; forfeiture of involved property and 
proceeds. 



t._. .~ 
'' _,,,. AO 257 (R=ev:.:..·=617..:..8=) _______________________ _ 

c=],EFEN_DANT INFORMATION RELATIVE TO A CRIMINAL ACTION • IN U.S. DISTRICT COURT =1 
BY: D COMPLAINT D INFORMATION ll) INDICTMENT 

D SUPERSEDING 
---- OFFENSE CHARGED --·---=------·-

18 U.S.C. § 554(a)- Smuggling of Goods; 
18 U.S.C. § 1956(h)-Conspiracy to Commit D Petty 
International Money Laundering; D Minor 
18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(2)(A)-Money Laundering O Misde-

meanor 
[l) Felony 

,- Name of District Court, and/or Judge/Magistrate Location 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

r- DEFENDANT· U. 

tPAVEL SEMENOVICH FLIDER 

DISTRICT COURT NUMBER 

· PENALTY: R 15 0154 18 U.S.C. § 554: 10 years in prison; three year period of 
supervised release; $250,000 fine; $100 special assessment; 
forfeiture of involved property and proceeds. ··-. -· - . '. ________ _) 

l(cont'd) ____ -·---- ··---- ---· 
--- DEFENDANT----------.. 

IS NOT IN CUSTODY 

I 

r·---···-·--·- PROCEEDING 
i Name of Comolaintant A9ency, or Person (&Title, if any) 
I Department of Commerce, Bureau of Industry and Security 

Special Agent Richard J. Fitzpatrick III 

D person is awaiting trial in another Federal or State 
Court, give name of court 

this person/proceeding is transferred from another D district per (circle one) FRCrP 20, 21 or 40. Show 
District 

this is a reprosecution of 

D charges previously dismissed 
which were dismissed on 
motion of: D U.S. Att'y D Defense 
this prosecution relates to a D pending case involving this same 
defendant 

SHOW 
1DOCKETNO. 

D 
prior proceedings or appearance(s) 
before U.S. Magistrate regarding · 

1 
this defendant were recorded under" 

(_ ________ , ______ _ 
Name and Office of Person 

MAGISTRATE 
CASE NO. 

Furnishing Information on MELINDA L. HAAG THIS FORM _, ___ ,, ______ _ 
(ll U.S. Att'y D Other U.S. Agency 

Name of Asst. U.S. Atfy 
(If assigned) Philip J. Kearney _...;,_ __ ..;._ _______ _ 

171 Has not been arrested, pending outcome this proceeding. 
1) gJ If not detained give date any prior summon• 

was served on above charges ., 

2) D Is a Fugitive F' J 
3) D Is on Bail or Release from (show District) L £ 

_____ HA_R -~-IlOts_ 
IS IN CUSTODY 

4) D On this charge 

5) D On another conviction 
G) D Awanmg ma1 on omer 

rh:uni::toc:i 

~[ftt~ARo W. WI 
NORTHERN &:rn1sm1cr1~LN 

ICT OF CACIFOR 1A 

} D Fed'I D State 

If answer to (6) is "Yes", show name of Institution 

, ___________ , ·---· .. --·-----
Has detainer D Yes } 
been filed? D No 

If "Yes" 
give date 
filed 

DATEOF t 
ARREST 

Month/DayN ear 

Or ... If Arresting Agency & Warrant were not 

DATE TRANSFERRED t 
TO U.S. CUSTODY 

Month/Day/Year 

·------------- ··-----·-
0 This report amends AO 257 previously submitted 

- .... · --- --- .. -----·---ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR COMMENTS 
PROCESS: 

D SUMMONS D NO PROCESS* 
If Summons, complete following: 
D Arraignment D Initial Appearance 
Defendant Address: 

12) WARRANT Bail Amount: NO BAIL 

*Where defendant previously apprehended on complaint, no new summons 
or waffant needed, since Magistrate has scheduled arraignment 

Daterrime: 

Before Judge: 

[ ____ ._ Com~~:~_::_-:_-_-_-_-__ ------------------------------- ·----



18 U.S.C. § I956(a)(2)(A) & (h): 20 years in prison; three yearperiod of supervised release; 
$500,000 fine or twice the value of the property used in the transaction, whichever is greater; 
forfeiture of involved property and proceeds. 



1 MELINDA HAAG (CABN 132612) 
United States Attorney 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

10 

11 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION 

12 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, QJ 15 0154 
13 

14 

15 

V. 

Plaintiff, 

16 PAVEL SEMENOVICH FLIDER and 
TRIDENT INTERNATIONAL 

17 CORPORATION, LLC, 

Defendants. 

) -· 
) VIOLATIONS: 
) Title 18, United States Code, Sections 554(a)-
) Smuggling of Goods; Title 18, United States Code, 
) Section 1956(h) - Conspiracy to Commit 
) International Money Laundering; Title 18, United 
) States Code, Section 1956(a)(2)(A) - Money 
) Laundering; Title 26, United States Code, Section 
) 5872-Export Related Forfeiture- (13 U.S.C § 305 -
) Failure to File Export Information Forfeiture, 18 
) U.S.C. § 981(a)(l)(C) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461-
) Smuggling Forfeiture); 18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(l)-
) Money Laundering Forfeiture 
) 
) 
) SAN FRANCISCO VENUE 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

_____________ ) 

INDICTMENT 

23 The Grand Jury charges: 

24 

25 

26 

At all times relevant to this Indictment: 

INTRODUCTORY ALLEGATIONS 

1. Defendant PAVEL SEMENOVICH FLIDER was a Russian national and naturalized 

27 citizen of the United States, who served as the co-owner and operator of TRIDENT INTERNATIONAL 

28 CORPORATION, LLC (hereinafter "TRIDENT"). 

1 



1 2. Defendant TRIDENT was a California Limited Liability Company located in Richmond, 

2 California, and San Francisco, California, that was operated, at least in part, for the purpose of 

3 procuring electronic components from United States companies and arranging for those components to 

4 be exported to Estonia and Finland for transshipment to Russia. Funds used by TRIDENT to purchase 

5 these electronic components came, at least in part, from transfers received by TRIDENT from foreign 

6 banks. 

7 3. "FREIGHT FORWARDER 1" was a freight forwarder with an office located in 

8 Helsinki, Finland. 

9 4. "FREIGHT FORWARDER 2" was a freight forwarder with an office located in 

10 Helsinki, Finland. 

11 5. "FREIGHT FORWARDER 3" was a freight forwarder with an office located in Tallin, 

12 Estonia. 

Export and Shipping Records 13 

14 6. Pursuant to United States law and regulation, exporters, shippers, and freight 

15 forwarders were required to file certain forms and declarations concerning exports of goods and 

16 technology from the United States. Typically, those forms were filed electronically through the 

17 Automated Export System ("AES") administered in part by the United States Department of Homeland 

18 Security ("DHS"), Bureau of Customs and Border Protection. A Shipper's Export Declaration ("SED") 

19 was an official document submitted to OHS in connection with export shipments from the United States. 

20 7. An essential and material part of the SED and AES, as well as other export filings, 

21 was information concerning· the end-user or ultimate destination of the export. The identity of the end-

22 user may determine whether or not the goods may be exported from the United States: a) without any 

23 specific authorization from the United States government; b) with the specific authorization or validated 

24 license from the United States Department of Commerce, the United States Department of State, or the 

25 United States Department of Treasury; or c) not under any circumstances. 

26 8. The SED or AES was equivalent to a statement to the United States government that 

27 the transaction occurred as described. The SED or AES was used by the United States Bureau of 

28 Census to collect trade statistics and by the Bureau of Industry and Security, Department of Commerce, 

2 



1 for export control purposes. 

2 9. The Secretary of Commerce had the authority to collect information from persons 

3 exporting goods from the United States. 13 U.S.C. § 301. The Foreign Trade Regulations (Title 15, 

4 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 30) set forth the general requirements for exporters, including the 

5 requirement that an exporter, known as the United States Principal Party in Interest ("USPPI"), or an 

6 exporter's agent file Electronic Export Information ("EEi") for all goods being exported where the value 

7 of a single commodity is over $2,500. 15 C.F.R. §§ 30.1, 30.2, and 30.37(a). 

8 10. The USPPI or its authorized agent was required to file EEi electronically through the 

9 AES. 15 C.F .R. § 30.2. The USPPI or its authorized agent had the responsibility to submit complete, 

1 O correct information in AES based on personal knowledge of the facts or on information furnished by the 

11 parties to the export transaction. 15 C.F.R. §§ 30.3, 30.9. Required information that must be submitted 

12 in AES included, among other things, the name of the USPPI, commodity description, shipping weight, 

13 ultimate consignee or end-user, and shipment value. 15 C.F.R. § 30.6. Once the EEi pertaining to an 

14 individual export shipment was processed by AES and accepted, an Internal Transaction Number 

15 ("ITN") was generated. 

16 COUNTS ONE THROUGH FIFTEEN: (18 U.S.C. §§ 554(a) and 2-Smuggling of Goods) 

17 11. The allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 10 are re-alleged and incorporated as 

18 if fully set forth herein. 

19 12. On or about the dates listed as to each count below, in the Northern District of California 

20 and elsewhere, the defendants, 

21 

22 

PAVEL SEMENOVICH FLIDER and 
TRIDENT INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION, LLC, 

23 and others, did knowingly export and send, and attempt to export and send from the United States, 

24 merchandise, articles, and objects in shipments with the ITNs listed below, contrary to the laws and 

25 regulations of the United States, specifically, by knowingly submitting false and misleading export 

26 information, and willfully causing another to file false and misleading export information, in an SED 

27 and through the AES, in violation of Title 13, United States Code, Section 305(a)(l). 

28 Ill 

3 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

ONE 

TWO 

THREE 

FOUR 

FIVE 

SIX 

SEVEN 

EIGHT 

NINE 

TEN 

ELEVEN 

TWELVE 

THIRTEEN 

FOURTEEN 

FIFTEEN 

December 17, 2011 Power Supplies FREIGHT FORWARDER l X20111216076025 

January 20, 2012 Power Supplies FREIGHT FORWARDER 2 X20120119065651 

February 4, 2012 Power Supplies FREIGHT FORWARDER 1 X20120203068987 

March 30, 2012 Power Supplies FREIGHT FORWARDER 2 X2012032807 57 54 

April 8, 2012 Power Supplies FREIGHT FORWARDER2 X20120406025211 

October 21, 2012 Power Supplies FREIGHT FORWARDER 2 X20121019070539 

November 10, 2012 Power Supplies FREIGHT FORWARDER 1 X2012110906463 8 

December 4, 2012 Power Supplies FREIGHT FORWARDER 1 X20121204026096 

February 16, 2013 Power Supplies FREIGHT FORWARDER 1 X20130215075346 

March 16, 2013 Power Supplies FREIGHT FORWARDER 2 X20130314069775 

April 6, 2013 Power Supplies FREIGHT FORWARDER 1 X20130405080352 

April 6, 2013 Power Supplies FREIGHT FORWARD ER 2 X20130405081365 

June 28, 2013 Electric Plugs, et al. FREIGHT FORWARDER 3 X20130625069271 

July 14, 2013 Power Supplies, et al. FREIGHT FORWARDER 3 X20130712076362 

July 21, 2013 Power Supplies, et al. FREIGHT FORWARDER 3 X20130719077891 

Each in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 554. 

18 COUNT SIXTEEN: 
19 

(18 U.S.C. § 1956(h)-Conspiracy to Commit International Money 
Laundering) 

20 13. The allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 10 are re-alleged and incorporated as 

21 if fully set forth herein. 

22 14. Beginning as early as in or about January 2009, the exact date being unknown to the 

23 Grand Jury, and continuing at least until in or about August 2014, in the Northern District of California 

24 and elsewhere, the defendant, 

25 Ill 

26 /II 

27 Ill 

28 /II 

4 



1 PAVEL SEMENOVICH FLIDER, 

2 did knowingly combine, conspire, and agree with other persons known and unknown to the Grand Jury 

3 to commit offenses against the United States in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 195~, 

4 specifically, to transport, transmit, and transfer, and attempt to transport, transmit, and transfer, 

5 monetary instruments and funds, to a place in the United States from a place outside the United States, 

6 with the intent to promote the carrying on of specified unlawful activity, to wit, illegally smuggling 

7 goods from the United States by falsifying information on SEDs in violation of Title 18, United States 

8 Code, Section 554 and Title 13, United States Code, Section 305; all in violation of Title 18, United 

9 States Code, Section 1956(a)(2)(A) and (h). 

10 COUNTS SEVENTEEN THROUGH TWENTY-SIX: 

11 

(18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(2)(A)-Money 
Laundering) 

12 15. The allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 10 are re-alleged and incorporated as 

13 if fully set forth herein. 

14 16. On or about the dates listed as to each count below, in the Northern District of California 

15 and elsewhere, the defendants, 

16 

17 

PAVEL SEMENOVICH FLIDER and 
TRIDENT INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION, LLC 

18 did willfully and knowingly transport, transmit, and transfer, and attempt to transport, transmit, and 

19 transfer, a monetary instrument and funds, as described more fully below for each count, to a place in 

20 the United States from a place outside the United States, with the intent to promote the carrying on of 

21 specified unlawful activity, to wit, illegally smuggling goods from the United States, by falsifying 

22 information on SEDs and through the AES in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 554 and 

23 Title 13, United States Code, Section 305, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 

24 1956(a)(2)(A). 

25 

26 
SEVENTEEN 

27 
EIGHTEEN 

28 NINETEEN 

April 19, 2012 

November 27, 2012 

Transfer from PPP Banlc SA, Czech Republic, to Wells Fargo Bank 
account endin -0108 in the amount of$197,497.00. 
Transfer from Marfin Bank Eesti, Estonia, to Wells Fargo Bank account 
endin -0 I 08 in the amount of $246,260.00. 
Transfer from Norvik Bank, Lativa, to Wells Fargo Bank account 
endin -3297 in the amount of$249,800.00. 

5 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

TWENTY March 28, 2013 Transfer from Baltikums Bank, Latvia, to Wells Fargo Bank account 
ending -3297 in the amount of $266,380.00. 

TWENTY-ONE June 20, 2013 Transfer from Eurobank, Cyprus, to Wells Fargo Bank account ending 
-0108 in the amount of$248,649.00. 

TWENTY-TWO June 23, 2013 Transfer from Trasta Komercnak, Lativa, to Wells Fargo Bank account 
ending-3297 in the amount of$306,130.00. 

TWENTY-THREE December IO, 2013 Transfer from ABLY, Latvia, to Wells Fargo Bank account ending 
-0108 in the amount of$249,125.60. 

TWENTY-FOUR March 31, 2014 Transfer from Hellenic Bank, Cyprus, to Wells Fargo Bank account 
ending -0 I 08 in the amount of $248;827 .50. 

TWENTYFIYE April 25, 2014 Transfer from HSBC Bank, Hong Kong, to Wells Fargo Bank account 
ending-3297 in the amount of$171,337.50. 

TWENTY-SIX August 8, 2014 Transfer from ABLY Bank, Latvia, to Wells Fargo Bank account ending 
-3297 in the amount of$270,310.00. 

Each in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(a)(2)(A). 

IO FORFEITURE ALLEGATION: (13 U.S.C § 305(a)(3)-Failure to File Export Information 
Forfeiture; 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(l)(C)- Smuggling Forfeiture; 18 U.S.C. § 982(a)(l)-Money 

11 Laundering Forfeiture; and 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c)) 

12 17. Upon conviction of one or more of the offenses alleged in Counts One through Fifteen of 

13 the Indictment, the defendants, 

14 

15 

PAVEL SEMENOVICH FLIDER and 
TRIDENT INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION, LLC, 

shall forfeit to the United States any specific property, including but not limited to a money judgment 
16 

equivalent to the following, pursuant to 13 U.S.C. § 305(a)(3) and 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(l)(C): 
17 

18 
a. Any interest in, security of, claim against, or property or contractual rights of any kind in 

the goods or tangible items that were the subject of the violation; 
19 

20 
b. Any interest in, security of, claim against, or property or contractual rights of any kind in 

tangible property that was used in the export or attempt to export that was the subject ofthe·violation; 
21 

22 

23 

and 

C. Any property constituting, or derived from, any proceed obtained directly or indirectly as 

a result of the violation; and 
24 

d. 
25 

the violation. 
26 

18. 
27 

28 

Any property, real or personal, which constitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable to 

Upon conviction of the offense alleged in Count Sixteen of the Indictment, the defendant, 

PAVEL SEMENOVICH FLIDER, 

6 



1 shall forfeit to the United States, pursuant to 18 U.S.C § 982(a)(l), any property, real or personal, 

2 involved in any such offense, or any property traceable to such property, including but not limited to the 

3 following: a money judgment equivalent to the amount of property involved in the violation of 18 U.S.C 

4 § 1956(h). 

5 19. Upon conviction of one or more of the offenses alleged in Count Seventeen through 

6 Twenty-Six of the Indictment, the defendants, 

7 

8 

PAVEL SEMENOVICH FLIDER and 
TRIDENT INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION, LLC, 

9 shall forfeit to the United States, pursuant to 18 U.S.C § 982(a)(l), any property, real or personal, 

10 involved in any such offense, or any property traceable to such property, including but not limited to the 

11 following: a money judgment equivalent to the amount of property involved in the violation of 18 U.S.C 

12 § 1956(h). 

13 20. If any of the property described above, as a result of any act or omission of the 

14 defendants: 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

(a) cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence; 

(b) has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party; 

( c) has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court; 

( d) has been substantially diminished in value; or 

( e) has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without difficulty; 

20 the United States of America shall be entitled to forfeiture of substitute property pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 

21 853(p), incorporated by 18 U.S.C. § 982(b)(l) and 28 U.S.C. § 2461(c). 

22 Ill 

23 Ill 

24 Ill 

25 Ill 

26 Ill 

27 Ill 

28 Ill 

7 



1 All pursuant to 13 U.S.C § 305(a)(3), 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(l)(C), 18 U.S.C. § 982(b)(l), and 28 

2 U.S.C. § 2461(c). 

3 DATED: ,¥/c2u /5 
4 

5 

6 
MELINDA HAAG 

7 Unite States Attorney 

8 

11 

12 (Approved as t 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

A TRUE BILL. 

!()~ 
FOREPERSON 
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MELINDA HAAG (CABN 132612) 
United States Attorney 
 
DAVID R. CALLAWAY (CABN 121782) 
Chief, Criminal Division 
 
PHILIP J. KEARNEY (CABN 114978) 
Assistant United States Attorney 
 
 450 Golden Gate Avenue, Box 36055 
 San Francisco, California 94102-3495 
 Telephone: (414) 436-7023 
 FAX: (415) 436-7234 
 Philip.kearney@usdoj.gov 
 
Attorneys for the United States of America 
 

 
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

 
SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION 

 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

      Plaintiff, 

v. 

 

PAVEL SEMENOVICH FLIDER and 
TRIDENT INTERNATIONAL 
CORPORATION, LLC, 
 
 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

No.  CR 15-0154 VC 
  
 
DECLARATION OF RICHARD J. FITZPATRICK  
IN SUPPORT OF GOVERNMENT’S MOTION TO 
DENY BAIL 
 
 
 
SAN FRANCISCO VENUE 
 

 
 
 

I, Richard J. Fitzpatrick III, hereby declare: 
  

1. I am employed as a Special Agent (“SA”) with the United States Department of 

Commerce (“DOC”), Bureau of Industry and Security, Office of Export Enforcement, and have been 

since September 2012.  I am currently assigned to the field office in San Jose, California.  I am a law 

enforcement officer of the United States within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 2510(7) and am authorized 
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4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

by law to conduct investigations and make arrests for felony offenses.  Prior to my current assignment, I 

was employed as a SA with the U.S. Department of Homeland Security Investigations and the Naval 

Criminal Investigative Service, where I investigated numerous violations relating to counterintelligence, 

counterterrorism, and U.S. export violations.  I am the lead DOC SA involved in the investigation of 

defendants Trident International Corporation, LLC (“TRIDENT”), and Pavel Semenovich Flider 

(“FLIDER”).  

2. This affidavit is made in support of the government’s motion to deny bail to the  
 
defendant as a flight risk, under 18 U.S.C. § 3142(f)(2).   
 
 3. On March 18, 2015, federal search warrants were served at the San Francisco,  
 
California, office of TRIDENT and the San Rafael, California, home of FLIDER.  The TRIDENT  
 
Search Warrant is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated as if fully set forth herein.  I am  
 
informed that approximately ten terabytes of data and thousands of documents were retrieved  
 
collectively pursuant to those searches.  The preliminary review of this material has provided new 

evidence of foreign assets, companies, and real estate apparently held by FLIDER and described in 

further detail below.  Based on my presence at the initial proceedings conducted in open court in which 

FLIDER’s assets were discussed and based on my discussions with government counsel, I believe that 

FLIDER did not disclose the existence of these foreign assets to the Pre-Trial Services Agency during 

his initial interview.  I believe that the existence of these foreign assets, as well as their apparent willful 

concealment from the Court, disclose a significant risk of flight by the defendant.  I further believe that a 

substantial portion of the approximately $69,653,430.67 of proceeds from the illegal export scheme 

detailed in Exhibit A remain unaccounted for, and further contribute to FLIDER’s ability to flee if 

released from custody.  See Exh. A ¶¶ 88-90. 

// 

// 

// 
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Evidence of Foreign Bank Accounts 

Promsvyazbank, Russia 

 4. Documents recovered from FLIDER’s residence show that on July 31, 2014, FLIDER 

transferred 500,000 rubles from his account at the OJSC Promsvyazbank in Moscow, Russia, to the 

corporate account of a Russian limited liability company named Fabrika Sveta held at the Sberbank 

Rossii OJSC (“Sberbank”).  (Document and translation of this transaction attached as Exhibit B).  I am 

informed by Russian-speaking federal law enforcement officers that “Fabrika Sveta” means ‘factory of 

light’ and that Sberbank refers to the Savings Bank of Russia, one of Russia’s largest banking 

institutions and currently the subject of sanctions imposed by the U.S. Department of Treasury.  I 

believe based on this transaction that FLIDER has an active bank account with Promsvyazbank in 

Russia. 

MKB Bank, Hungary 
 

5.       A “Financial Services Agreement” seized from FLIDER’s residence revealed the existence 

of another account linked to FLIDER with the MKB Bank ZRT (“MKB”) in Budapest, Hungry.  This 

agreement is attached as Exhibit C.  This document demonstrates that in 2008 FLIDER opened an MKB 

account in the name of “Santora International Ltd” (“Santora”), a company apparently formed by 

FLIDER in the Republic of Seychelles as discussed further below.  MKB account documents appear to 

be signed by FLIDER in 2011 and list both his correct date of birth and a Russian passport number.  See 

Exh. C at 8.  In an account “Declaration” signed by FLIDER on April 26, 2011, FLIDER lists his 

address as “g. Pushkin ul. Shkolnaya, d. 39/33, kv. 177.”  I am informed by Russian-speaking federal 

law enforcement officers that this address refers to a residence on Shkolnaya Street in the City of 

Pushkin, which is a suburb of St. Petersburg Russia, and is discussed further below.   

SBERBANK, Russia 
 
6. Pages from a spiral bound note pad recovered from FLIDER’s home office during the 

service of a search warrant by your affiant on March 18, 2015, contained hand written notes in Russian 
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and English. They are attached as Exhibit D.  One page of the note pad contained the name “Saving 

Bank of Russian Federation, Moscow Bank Corr (correspondent) Account 890-0053-982 Bank of New 

York USA.”  Exh D at 1.  This Sberbank account number is different than the recipient account of the 

ruble transfer from FLIDER’s Promsvyazbank account discussed above.  As such, I believe this account 

number appears to be evidence of yet another foreign bank account FLIDER either owns or actively 

does business with in Russia.   

Evidence of Foreign Corporations 
 

Santora International 
 

7. As noted above, FLIDER apparently created a company in the Republic of Seychelles 

named “Santora International Ltd” (“Santora”).  Two official registration certificates dated December 2, 

2008, with identical incorporation numbers were recovered from FLIDER’s home office pursuant to the 

search warrant service noted above.  These are attached collectively as Exhibit E.  The documents reveal 

Santora’s corporate office to be located at Suite 9, Ansuya Estate, Revolution Avenue, Victoria, Mahe, 

Seychelles.  The documents state the authorized share capital of the company to be $100,000 USD; each 

bears a Republic of the Seychelles seal (dated August 11, 2014 and September 4, 2014 respectively).  

Also seized from FLIDER’s home during the search were communications from the Hungarian 

company “Laveco Ltd” (“Laveco”), an offshore company formation agency which bills itself as “The 

offshore company maker since 1991.”  A one-page letter on Laveco stationary addressed to FLIDER 

with what appears to be a 2014 date states in relevant part: “I am glad to send you Certificate of Official 

Company Search of the company Santora International Ltd.”  Based on these seized documents I believe 

that FLIDER has set up and funded an offshore company in the Republic of the Seychelles.  

Fabrika Sveta, LLC 
  

8. As noted above, documents recovered from FLIDER’s residence written in Russian and 

translated by Russian-speaking U.S. law enforcement personnel appear to show that FLIDER obtained a 

loan from a company named “OOO Fabrika Sveta” in 2013.  These documents are attached as Exhibit F, 
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with English translations.  I am aware that “OOO” is the Russian equivalent of a U.S. Limited Liability 

Company.  Open source research conducted by your affiant appears to confirm that OOO Fabrika Sveta 

is a manufacturing company reported as located variously in Abakan and Stavropol, Russia.  Documents 

contained in Exhibit F appear to show a “second stage” payment to a “no-interest-loan investment 

contract” made by FLIDER to OOO Fabrika Sveta in the amount of 500,000 rubles on June 17, 2014.  

Exh F at 6.  Based on my training and experience, I believe the existence of this no-interest loan to be 

potential evidence that FLIDER either owns an equity stake in OOO Fabrika Sveta or that the company 

is conducting work at FLIDER’s request. 

Evidence of Foreign Real Estate Holdings  
 

9.  In addition to his personal residence in the St. Petersburg suburb of Pushkin noted above, 

two documents recovered from FLIDER’s residence and written completely in Russian appear to be 

certificates showing FLIDER owns one lot of undeveloped land in Ryazan, Russia, which is 

approximately 170 kilometers from Moscow.  These documents are attached as Exhibit G.  The 

documents are dated 2007 and appear to have official stamps from the local municipal government.  

They correctly list FLIDER’s date of birth.  Your affiant is aware that Ryazan is known to be a high-tech 

manufacturing center in Russia and is home to many military-industrial companies.  Ryazan is also 

home to several Russian Air Force bases.  

Foreign Travel 

10. I am aware from my investigation in this matter that FLIDER regularly travels abroad, 

often to the Russian Federation.  I am also aware from my review of Automated Targeting Systems data 

maintained by U.S. Customs and Border Protection, that FLIDER, along with his wife and daughter, are 

currently booked on Lufthansa flight 455 leaving San Francisco International Airport on June 16, 2015 

bound for Frankfurt, Germany, with a follow-on flight (LH 1320), booked to Pulkovo, Russia.  

CONCLUSION 

 Based on the above, your affiant believes there is evidence that FLIDER has substantial assets  



1
outside of the United States, including liquid assets, corporate holdings, and real estate. I believe he has

affirmatively concealed these assets from Pre-Trial Services and by extension, the Court. Your affiant
2

3
further believes that these holdings-and the potential lifestyle they would afford--disclose a substantial

4
5 increase in the risk ofFLIDER's flight from the United States ifhe is released from custody. His failure

6 to disclose these assets also reveals a lack of honesty with the Court and a resulting further risk of flight.

7 I declare under the penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct to the best of my

8 Knowledge.

9

10

11

12

Executed on this 17th day of April, 2015, in San Francisco, California.

:VJ!l/~j~J7L
Special AgeiIt Richard 1. Fitzpatrick III
Department of Commerce13
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

 
SAN FRANCISCO DIVISION 

 
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

      Plaintiff, 

v. 

 

PAVEL SEMENOVICH FLIDER and 
TRIDENT INTERNATIONAL 
CORPORATION, LLC, 
 
 

Defendants. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

No.  CR 15-0154 VC 
  
 
SUPPLEMENTAL DECLARATION OF RICHARD 
J. FITZPATRICK  IN SUPPORT OF 
GOVERNMENT’S MOTION TO DENY BAIL 
 
 
 
SAN FRANCISCO VENUE 
 

 
 
 

I, Richard J. Fitzpatrick III, hereby declare: 
  

1. I am employed as a Special Agent (“SA”) with the United States Department of 

Commerce (“DOC”), Bureau of Industry and Security, Office of Export Enforcement, and have been 

since September 2012.  I am currently assigned to the field office in San Jose, California.  I am a law 

enforcement officer of the United States within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 2510(7) and am authorized 
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by law to conduct investigations and make arrests for felony offenses.  Prior to my current assignment, I 

was employed as a SA with the U.S. Department of Homeland Security Investigations and the Naval 

Criminal Investigative Service, where I investigated numerous violations relating to counterintelligence, 

counterterrorism, and U.S. export violations.  I am the lead DOC SA involved in the investigation of 

defendants Trident International Corporation, LLC (“TRIDENT”), and Pavel Semenovich Flider 

(“FLIDER”).  

2. This affidavit is made in support of the government’s motion to deny bail to the  
 
defendant as a flight risk, under 18 U.S.C. § 3142(f)(2).   
 
 3. The U.S. Department of Commerce (“DOC”), Bureau of Industry and Security (BIS), 

Office of Export Enforcement (“OEE”) has investigated the illegal export activities of FLIDER and his 

corporation TRIDENT since 2004.  During this investigation SA’s with OEE have interviewed FLIDER 

on three separate occasions regarding his export business.  In all three of these interviews detailed 

below, FLIDER provided false statements to investigators about his company’s exports.   

Evidence of False Statements 

2004 Interview 

 4. I am aware that on January 23, 2004 OEE SA’s contacted FLIDER at his residence and 

the corporate location for TRIDENT, located at 4773 Surrey Lane, Richmond, California.  During this 

interview FLIDER claimed that the end-user of the commodities he exported was a company called 

“Sparta” located in St. Petersburg, Russia.  FLIDER said he was aware of the DOC Export 

Administration Regulations (“EAR”) and that all the commodities he exported were classified by the 

manufacturers as “EAR99,” meaning no U.S. government license was required for their shipment to 

Russia.  According to FLIDER, he chose not to purchase commodities requiring an export license to 

avoid the “headache.”  As your affiant I have reviewed evidence recovered from the March 18, 2015 

search of FLIDER’s residence and the TRIDENT office space that directly contradicts FLIDER’s 

statement to OEE agents in 2004.  Among the evidence recovered are TRIDENT invoices going back as 



 
 

 

3 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

far as 1999 and showing multiple shipments to Russian end-user “VO Mashpriborintorg.”  According to 

open source reports from the FBI VO Mashpriborintorg is a procurement front company for the Russian 

Intelligence and Security Service.  Nowhere have I found evidence of TRIDENT exports directly to 

“Sparta” as alleged by FLIDER.  As your affiant I believe FLIDER fabricated “Sparta” as cover for the 

true end-users of the electronic components he exported.  I have also found extensive evidence that 

FLIDER exported controlled (non-EAR99) electronic components to Russia. 

 2013 Interview 

5.       On August 5, 2013 your affiant along with another OEE SA interviewed FLIDER at what 

was at that time his residence located at his residence in Richmond, California.  During this interview 

FLIDER told your affiant he has had one and only one customer, Estonia based Adimir, for the past 18 

years.  FLIDER was adamant that he did not export to any end-users inside the Russian Federation.  

When asked about his previous statements regarding Sparta as his customer, he said Adimir used 

“Sparta” only as a consultant for various projects.   I have reviewed, sometimes with the help of 

Russian- speaking federal law enforcement officers, results of search warrants executed on FLIDER’s 

email account which directly contradict FLIDER’s statements in 2013.  In addition, a Mutual Legal 

Assistance Treaty (MLAT) request to the Estonian Customs Service returned thousands of documents, 

including interviews with Adimir corporate officers, which directly refute FLIDER’s statements to your 

affiant that Adimir was the end-user for TRIDENT exports. 

2015 Interview 
 
6. On March 18, 2015, federal search warrants were executed at the TRIDENT office space 

and FLIDER’s residence.  Subsequent to the execution of these search warrants your affiant interviewed 

FLIDER at his residence after reading FLIDER his Miranda Rights from the BIS FORM 7008TF 

“Office of Export Enforcement Warning and Waiver of Rights” form.  FLIDER read his rights and 

waived them both verbally and in writing at approximately 11:03 AM (PST).  During this interview 

FLIDER told your affiant that from 2000 to 2013 he only exported electrical components to Adimir and 
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denied exporting to Russia during that time period.  FLIDER was shown copies of TRIDENT invoices 

discovered during the execution of the MLAT dated during the 2000 to 2013 time frame which showed 

Russian end-users for his exports.  In spite of this evidence FLIDER denied to your affiant that he had 

exported the items to Russia.  I am aware of the information contained in Exhibit B, the affidavit of FBI 

SA David C. Koblitz which provides the details of a small sampling of the hundreds if not thousands of 

suspected exports of electronic equipment to Russian end-users made during the exact time frame that 

FLIDER claimed not to have done so.  As such and based on my broader investigation, I believe that 

FLIDER’s statements to me were untrue.  FLIDER did admit during this interview that he undervalued 

TRIDENT exports and falsified the end-user information provided to his freight forwarders which were 

input into the shippers export declaration (SED) and/or the Electronic Export Information (EEI).   

False Statements on SEDs 

7. During the course of this investigation I have personally reviewed 156 Shippers Export 

Declarations (SEDs) filed by FLIDER for TRIDENT exports between January 2009 and April 2014.  All 

of these SEDs untruthfully listed freight forwarders in Finland and/or Estonia as the ultimate consignee 

for the corresponding TRIDENT shipments.   When SAs and local law enforcement visited these sites 

they found no electronic or industrial manufacturing facilities.  Your affiant believes these falsified 

SEDs constitute further evidence that FLIDER is dishonest with U.S. government personnel.  

Foreign Travel 

8.   FLIDER is a Russian émigré and naturalized U.S. citizen who has lived in the U.S. since 

1992.  FLIDER has maintained he was born in the country of Belarus, formerly of the Union of Soviet 

Socialist Republics (USSR); however FLIDER maintains passports only from the U.S. and Russia.   

Over the past few years FLIDER has consistently traveled to Russia for extended periods of time.  

During these trips FLIDER utilizes both his Russian and U.S. passport interchangeably.   

// 



1

2

investigation. I believe the fact that FLIDER has continued to provide these false statements, even when

CONCLUSION

9. Based on the above, your affiant believes there is evidence that FLIDER has continually

3 provided false statements to your affiant and other federal law enforcement officers during this
4

5
confronted with contradictory evidence, reveals a lack of honesty which your affiant believes can and

6
7 will translate in to an increased risk of flight ifFLIDER is released from custody. The growing body of

8 evidence collected during this investigation, including as characterized by SA Koblitz as referenced

9 above, also reveals a nexus between FLIDER and end-users in the Russian military- industrial complex.

10 It is your affiant's belief that with the support of the Government of Russia FLIDER could flee this

11

12
country if released and find safe harbor inside the Russian Federation.

13 I declare under the penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct to the best of my

14 Knowledge.
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Executed on this 18th day of May, 2015, in San Francisco, California.

;Uil&
Special Agent Richard J. Fitzpatrick III
Department of Commerce
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